
Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

1 

 

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, April 11, 2023.  
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair George Dunlap, Vice Chair Elaine Powell, and Commissioners  

Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, 
Vilma D. Leake, Laura J Meier,  
and Susan Rodriguez-McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  Commissioner Mark Jerrell 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
  
23-0238          CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE   
 
 
The Board received an update on FY24 - FY28 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
  
David Boyd, Chief Financial Officer, made the presentation. 
   
Background: Chief Financial Officer David Boyd will provide an update on the County's Capital 
Improvement Plan.  This update will include a review of the CIP strategy and timelines, review of 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

2 

 

the proposed CIP funding and authorizations, current departmental submissions, and current 
CIP process next steps. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

3 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

4 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

5 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

6 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

7 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

8 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

9 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

10 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

11 

 

 
 
Comments 
 

Commissioner Griffin asked about the rolling CIP, if they were adding on an additional year. He 
also asked if they were adding additional GO Bonds (General Obligation Bonds) in terms of 
referendums or adding a set amount based on the tax rate.  Mr. Boyd said that based on the 10-
year model they were looking at, some projects didn’t wrap up until 2032 in terms of spending. 
He stated they were looking at 2029 and determining what were the needs, and what their 
capacity was to complete projects with PayGO. 
 
Chair Dunlap asked when they figured there would be another tax increase in Year 5, did they 
take into consideration that they did the reevaluation every 4 years. Mr. Boyd stated yes.  
 
Chair Dunlap asked if they considered that an increase in taxes based on the fund balance 
policy would generate more dollars. Mr. Boyd said the plan didn’t assume they would use any of 
fund balance that they currently had to fund the CIP.  
 
Chair Dunlap mentioned the proposal having $1 billion in CMS projects and $1 billion non-CMS 
projects, 50% installment financing, and 50% PayGO. He asked if that was taken into 
consideration as they moved out or if it was just for that specific scenario.  Mr. Boyd stated it 
was for the next five years. 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

12 

 

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if the tax increase stayed the same whether the bond 
is $2.5 million or not, until 2029. Mr. Boyd responded yes.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said a lot could change and could it be possible that those 
scenarios were just forecasts.  She asked if they were held to those increases. Mr. Boyd stated 
that based on the current assumptions, that was what was necessary to carry out the plan. He 
said every year they would be able to adjust and recalculate what was different at the time.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked about the 10-year plan, that she didn’t see where it 
was CMS projects or their own identified projects. She asked where the rest of those projects 
were able to come in and be funded.  Chair Dunlap said every two years there were elections, 
and a new Board would come in and change previous decisions. He stated it was not likely that 
tax increases would be reduced because the debt was still there. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said the Board may change, but the community stayed the 
same, along with the needs. She asked where they showed the public how their needs could be 
met. She stated they do not plan far enough in advance.  County Manager Diorio said she didn’t 
think they would ever catch up. She stated completing a forecast as far as 2031 was aggressive. 
She stated the farther out the projections were, the less accurate they became.   
 
Commissioner Altman thanked residents and staff. She asked 3 questions:  

1. If the 2018 Board made a commitment to the community for a pace related to greenway 
development, and what was the commitment. 

2. Were there any equity pieces(investments) of greenways that have been removed. 
3. What had they done to pursue corporate and private collaboration.  

 
Park and Recreation Director Lee Jones said the issue was how quickly they could build with the 
funding they had. He stated they fell a little short of their goal based on what was already in the 
CIP, but they did accelerate the greenway program through the support of the Manager’s 
Office.  
 
In response to Commissioner Altman’s second question, Mr. Jones said regarding the funding 
they received over prior years for equity funding, some did include greenway projects. In 
reference to Irwin Creek Greenway, he said they were trying to move forward and thought they 
were on pace with completion. 
 
Capital Planning Division Director, Bert Lynn said two segments of Irwin Creek Greenway were 
on the list. He said they were trying to maximize the amount of mileage they were getting from 
the amount of investment they were getting. He said there was funding from NCDOT to offset 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

13 

 

part of the project and for another portion of the Greenway it would take a few more years for 
coordination due to having to include a Wastewater Treatment Plan, but also having to go 
under a rail line.   
 
In response to Commissioner Altman’s third question, Mr. Jones said he met with different 
organizations, and they received gifts and donations towards the greenways. He said regarding 
Steward Creek, they partnered with the Homeowner’s Association to accelerate the 
development of that greenway.  
 
Chair Dunlap said before Meck Playbook there was a ten-year plan for Park and Recreation. He 
asked if it was completed.  Mr. Jones said no. He said the 2008 Master Plan was hit hard by the 
recession between 2008 and 2011, and that caused a five-year slowdown.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked about the park list and why was the dredging of Park Road Park and 
Freedom Park “not applicable”, and why was it on the list if so. Mr. Boyd said the ‘not 
applicable’ for the dredging was added since they first talked to the Board. He said the $10 
million annual land purchase was added for future land acquisition.  
 
County Manager Diorio said the dredging was talked about outside of the CIP process and 
added it to have it funded by the CIP.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked regarding the next CIP for 2025 to 2029, if they would add new 
projects for 2029. Mr. Boyd said they would evaluate 2025 to 2028, to determine if there were 
any changes necessary, and determine what they need to add to the plan. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked regarding the schedules/tax impacts if there was a tool on the 
website people could plug in their value and get an estimate of what they're looking at tax-
wise. County Manager Diorio stated there was no such a tool. 
 
Vice Chair Powell said the pace of meeting the needs was slow. She asked if it was realistic to 
have two CRCs in the CIP, instead of rolling one over to the next CIP.  County Manager Diorio 
said the plan was to have five. She said there were two completed and three more to go. She 
said to meet their goal of having five CRCs in Mecklenburg County, completing them was a 
priority. She said putting services in the communities had been a goal for a long time. 
 
Vice Chair Powell asked how they could balance it better, because it felt like no one was 
meeting their plans.  County Manager Diorio said if they wanted to fund something else, they 
would have to cut something. She said they were balancing the needs across the County.  
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

14 

 

Commissioner Leake said she wanted to commend staff and the County Manager. She said the 
crescent was left out all the time. She said she was concerned with how they were going to 
come up with a fair share of CRCs across the community that impacted not just one group of 
people. She asked how they would change the process to make sure they were meeting the 
needs of all their people.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said that CRCs were one of his priorities. He said they had to figure out a 
way to address the needs. He said there were a lot of things they could improve on. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked about the capital projects ranking form and rankings 
by CIP scores if she could be provided with an explanation of how they work. Mr. Boyd said they 
were ranked by a different set of criteria. He explained certain questions were asked that 
determined scoring. He said it wasn’t meant to be determinative. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if the Executive Team were the ones that went 
through them, and how they came up with what was funded and not funded. Mr. Boyd said 
they sat with County Manager Diorio and presented the information to them.  
 
County Manager Diorio said they did not go through each Park and Recreation project but 
determined where to draw the line. She said there were commitments made to Sheriff 
McFadden that had to be left on the list. She said they didn’t take any projects off the list or 
bump a project up or down the list. She stated that CRCs were needed not only for the 
community but for staffing needs as well. 
 
Vice Chair Powell said it was important for the community to know how many projects weren’t 
included.  
 
Commissioner Altman said parks and greenways were critical for health. She asked the County 
Manager to define for the public to understand what CRCs were for, and why just two CRCs 
were included.  County Manager Diorio said that part of it was for staff, but the majority of 
what they did was for the community to apply and have services where they work and live.  
 
Chair Dunlap said the Board had to look at everything as a County, and not for their own 
specific interest.   
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

15 

 

 

23-0228 FY2024 BUDGET PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Board received as information a status update on the FY2024 Budget Public Engagement  
 
Adrian Cox, Budget Director, gave the presentation. 
   
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

16 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

17 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

18 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

19 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

20 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

21 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

22 

 

 
 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

23 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

24 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

25 

 

 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

26 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

27 

 

 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

28 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

29 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

30 

 

 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

31 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

32 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

33 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

34 

 

 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

35 

 

Comments 
 

Chair Dunlap said that in the event the bonds didn’t pass, he stated he wanted them to have a 
contingency plan. he asked County Manager Diorio to explain to the public why they had to do 
a bond referendum for schools and not other things.  
 
County Manager Diorio said the reason they did bond referendums was for transparency to the 
public and an opportunity for the public to weigh in. She said before 2008, they issued debt for 
everything. They began to use PAYGO as much as they could for non-school projects and use 
debt for school projects.  
 
Commissioner Cotham asked Mr. Cox how they reacted to only 49 participants at community 
events, as it seemed disappointing. Mr. Cox said it was lower than they liked, and the last time 
the events were held was before the pandemic. He said they could speculate why the 
participation was low, but they would have to go back to look at possible reasons. 
 
Commissioner Cotham asked if they ever looked at other demographics to be more diverse. She 
said to build more support for the future, they could look at high school seniors.  Mr. Cox stated 
that they did look into gender, but not orientation. He said the results would be on their 
dashboards. He said they had done workshops with MPA courses at UNC, as well as with a 
Microeconomics course at CPCC.  
 
Commissioner Griffin thanked Mr. Cox and his team.  
 
Chair Dunlap said as the County debated tax rates, the City was doing the same, as well as the 
other six Towns in the County. He said no matter what they decided, residents could be 
impacted by what the City and Towns decided as well. 
 
 

23-0116 COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:47 p.m. 



Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2023 
 

36 

 

 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board George Dunlap, Chair 
 
 


